

NQTT

MQTT IO-Station

Technical manual

NOTE:

The Information in this manual is in a "draft" state, meaning, that the contents may be incomplete or not completely up to date with the myGEKKO OS Version you may be using.

Table of Contents

Safety and Warranty2
Safety instructions
Warranty2
MQTT IO-Station document
Purpose
Basic concepts
Which wireless technologies are enabled by the MQTT IO-Station?
What is MQTT?
What is an end device?4
What is a Broker?4
Why MQTT?5
Overview6
Configuration of the MQTT IO-Station6
Enabling the MQTT IO-Station6
Configuring the MQTT IO-Station15
Modifying parameters in an already configured MQTT IO-Station
Connection status messages22
Management of the MQTT devices24
Adding new devices24
Using the device's IO signals within the system elements47
Modifying parameters in an already existing MQTT device65
Removing existing devices68
Q&As
Useful links and bibliography72



Safety and Warranty

The devices are manufactured in a safe and workmanlike manner in compliance with current regulations and are operationally reliable. They have been tested and have left the factory in perfect condition.

However, there are residual risks. Read and comply with safety instructions to avoid risks.

Ekon GmbH assumes no liability for damages caused by non compliance with the safety instructions.

Safety instructions

Safety instructions about the product described in this document are listed below. Please observe them carefully while using the product.

Electric Voltage

Danger to life and fire hazard from electrical voltage

Inside the device are unprotected live component parts. Observe the VDE regulations. Disconnect all cables to be installed and take safety precautions against unintentional switching on. Do not operate the device if damaged or not functioning properly. Decommission the device or system and secure it against accidental operation, if any operation without risk may supposedly not be guaranteed.

Device damage from external influences!

Moisture and dirt on the equipment can lead to its destruction. Protect devices from moisture, dirt and damage during transport, storage and operation.

Warranty

The device is intended solely for proper use. Any inappropriate change or non compliance with the operating instructions invalidates any warranty or guarantee. After unpacking, check the device immediately for any mechanical damage. In case of damage caused during transportation please immediately inform the supplier. The device must only be operated as a fixed installation, i.e. only when installed and after all of the installation and commissioning work has been completed, and exclusively in the environment it is intended for. Ekon GmbH shall not be liable for any modifications to standards and norms after publication of the operating instructions.



MQTT IO-Station document

Purpose

The MQTT IO-Station enables the communication of MQTT devices with the myGEKKO controller. MQTT devices are communicating on the same protocol, no matter the method or transmitting the data (LoRa, Ethernet, ...). In addition, MQTT-based devices are known for their low-power consumption and their long-range communication, making this technology suitable to be used in buildings and remote areas, that may or may not have already established networks in place.

This manual introduces the MQTT IO-Station, available on myGEKKO controllers, and explains how to configure it to connect to a MQTT Broker and integrate MQTT-based devices.





Basic concepts

This section briefly introduces the basic concepts needed to understand the content of this manual and how to use it in the myGEKKO controller.

Which wireless technologies are enabled by the MQTT IO-Station?

The myGEKKO MQTT IO-Station enables the connection between the myGEKKO controller and a MQTT Broker, thus enabling a direct connection between the myGEKKO controller and MQTT-devices. The devices provide the data to the myGEKKO controller, which can be linked to the myGEKKO system elements, such as lights, temperature sensors, etc.

What is MQTT?

MQTT is a transport Protocoll, that uses different technologies like LoRa or also Ethernet to transmit it's data to a broker. This broker can then be subscribed to, to receive the data as soon as an update ois posted by one of the connected devices.

The MQTT IO Station of the myGEKKO controller enables the integration of MQTT capable Brokers, in combination with a variety of end devices, into the myGEKKO OS.

What is an end device?

An "end device" is like a special messenger that sends and receives information. It's the device you use to collect data or control things, like a sensor on a weather station or a smart meter in your home.

Imagine you have a weather sensor in your backyard. This sensor is the "end device." It measures things like temperature and humidity and then uses a connection to send that information to a central station, like a weather monitoring system. The sensor doesn't do any fancy processing or routing of data; it just sends its measurements to the central station.

What is a Broker?



In a MQTT network, a "Broker" is like a communication hub that helps messages from devices like sensors and meters get to the internet. It is like a bridge between the sensors and the cloud. Since the devices can't connect directly to the internet because they have a limited range, a Broker is needed to send their data to the internet.

Why MQTT?

MQTT-based devices can be a great choice for smart home projects for several reasons. MQTT technology provides long-range communication capabilities through for example LoRa, allowing your smart home devices to communicate over extended distances. This is beneficial for larger homes or installations that might face challenges with traditional short-range wireless technologies. Or you could use LAN Networks that are already established to communicate between the devices and the broker to keep renovating costs as low as possible. Also, MQTT devices are designed for low power consumption, making them ideal for battery-operated devices.

MQTT technology is often considered cost-effective for connecting a large number of devices. This is advantageous for smart home projects that involve multiple sensors and actuators distributed throughout the home.

Finally, MQTT networks can be easily scaled to accommodate additional devices. As your smart home project grows, you can add more sensors without significant infrastructure changes.



Overview

This manual could be summarized in the following steps:

- 1. Configuration of the MQTT IO-Station
- 2. Management of the MQTT devices
- 3. Use of the MQTT devices within the myGEKKO system elements

Some considerations must be considered before continue reading the manual:

- The maximum number of devices which can be added into a MQTT IO Station is 255 devices. That means that if more devices are needed, a second MQTT IO Station has to be enabled and configured.
- The myGEKKO controller limits the use of one MQTT Broker for each MQTT IO-Station. This means that we have a relation 1:1 → only ONE MQTT IO-Station can be connected to ONE Broker.
- Therefore, if more than 255 devices are needed, at least two MQTT Brokers must be configured and installed.

Configuration of the MQTT IO-Station

This section shows how to enable and configure the myGEKKO MQTT IO-Station based on an already-done MQTT Broker installation.

Enabling the MQTT IO-Station

To enable a MQTT IO-Station, we need to go to the IO-Station menu, pick up one of the available IO-Stations, and indicate that it is a MQTT IO-Station. **NOTE**: configurator permissions are needed to carry out this procedure. Please log in as configurator by clicking on the Locker icon located at the top right corner of the screen:





And introduce the configurator password.



🔮 myGEK	(KO - 192.16	58.2.34 - Cor	nnected	_		— C	x c					
	Anmelden											

Ein	gabe	sicht	bar									
ۍ	q	w	е	r	t	z	u	i	0	р		
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	×		
У	x	с	v	b	n	m	ö	ä		_		
Esc 123									С)k		

Once the login was successfully done, starting from the main screen, please click on the Configuration icon located at the right top corner of the screen (gear icon):





A small popup will appear, where we need to click on "Settings" to open the settings menu.





Then, the Settings menu will be shown. The IO-Stations section is accessible by clicking on the rightest icon (circular icon with two arrows) located at the bottom right corner of the screen, in the bottom menu. Please click on it:







The IO-Station screen is then shown. We can check all the IO-Stations in order to know which IO-Station is free to use. In case that there is no free IO-Stations, we would need to select one and change its configuration. **WARNING**: do not do that before asking to the right person (myGEKKO support, electrician, technician, etc) with knowledge about the myGEKKO controller.

Let's assume that the IO-Stations 1 and 2 are already being used. Then, we would need to use the IO-Station 3 (if it is still free). Then, we click on on the "3: IO-Station" button located on the left vertical menu:



Once selected, if the IO-Station was not used before, a button with the text "NC" (Not Connected) will be shown, meaning that the IO-Station is not in use. Please click on that button to open the IO-Station type selector:



🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.3	4 - Connected	_	o x
	6 Einstellungen	¢	÷
1: IOStation 3	NC		
2: IOStation	>		
3: IOStation	>		
4: IOStation	>		
5: IOStation	>		
6: IOStation	>		
7: IOStation	>		
8: IOStation	>		

A popup window will appear showing all the options that the myGEKKO controller offers you to enable an IO-Station. Select the option "MQTT", located at the bottom right corner of the popup.



🔮 myGEKKC) - 192.168.2.3	34 - Connected				_		×
A	15:5 Di, 21. N	6 ov.	Einstel	lung	en	¢	÷	
								ł
		NC			HTTP	/WebApi		I
	١	Wago31x			KNX-ł	ORIVE		I
	WG 81x/	ТСР - ВКН	l 7x/9x		Ŀ	CN		I
	myC	GEKKO RK	C		KNX vork	configuriert		I
		Modbus			Bac	netIP		I
	GI	VIS Telenot	t		Bluel	Range		I
	М	odbus-List			myGEK	KO DALI		I
	Enoc	ean-USB3	00		M	Ω ΤΤ		I
		DMX			Lo	oRa		I
Le	egacytyper	1>				Zurück		

After selecting "MQTT", the MQTT menu is shown. The menu has 3 buttons:

- **Configuration**: which opens the configuration screen that allows you to insert the MQTT Broker information.
- **Diagnose**: which shows error and status messages of the internal behavior of the IO-Station for support purposes (still not available).
- **Devices**: which opens the screen to manage the MQTT-based devices.



In addition, an extra button to enable or disable the "Activity log" of the IO-Station is available.

🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34	- Connected			-	o x
A	15:56 Di, 21. No	Eins	stellunge	en	¢	÷
1: IOStatio	on >	LoRa				
2: IOStatio	on >			Kor	figuration >	
				D	iagnose >	
3: IOStatic	on >				Geräte >	
4: IOStatic	on >					
5: IOStatic	on >					
6: IOStatio	on >	Log aktivieren	Aus			
7: IOStatic	on >					
8: IOStatio	on >					

With this, the MQTT IO-Station is enabled and ready to be configured.

Configuring the MQTT IO-Station

To configure the MQTT IO-Station means to introduce the MQTT Broker information in order to allow the myGEKKO controller to receive the MQTT packages coming from the sensors and containing the sensors' information.

Probably, after enabling the MQTT IO-Station, an alarm is raised in the system indicating that the IO-Station has no connection. That means that, right after enabling it, the IO-Station tried to create the connection to the Broker. However, since we did not add any information about the Broker, it was an unsuccessful attempt.



🛃 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2	.34 -	Connected			_	
A	15:5 Di, 21.1	56 Nov.	Einstellu	inge	n	¢	←
1: IOStatio	on	>	LoRa				
2: IOStatio	on	>			Kor	nfiguration >	
					D	iagnose >	
3: IOStatio	on	>				Geräte >	
4: IOStatio	on	>					
5: IOStatio	on	>					
6: IOStatio	on	>	Log aktivieren Aus				
7: IOStatio	on	>					
8: IOStatio	on	>					

There, please click on the "Configuration" button to open the configuration screen:



🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34	- Connected			-	o ×
A	15:56 Di, 21. Nov	È Eir	nstellung	en	ç	←
1: IOStatio	on >	LoRa				
2: IOStatio	on >			Ко	nfiguration >	
2.1000-5				[Diagnose >	
3: IOStatic	on >				Geräte >	
4: IOStatio	on >					
5: IOStatio	on >					
6: IOStatio	on >	Log aktivieren	Aus			
7: IOStatio	on >					
8: IOStatio	on >					

The following settings are available in the configuration menu:

• **GW address**: The IPv4 address of the MQTT Broker. It must be reachable from the myGEKKO controller.



🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 -	Connected	_	
↑ ↑ 10:56 ™i, 20. Dez	Einstellunge	en 🕻	÷
LoRa Konfiguration			
GW Adresse			
Host-Adresse	e falsch/Ungülti	Zurück	

To start the configuration, we add first the MQTT Broker IPv4 address assigned during the MQTT Broker configuration process. **NOTE**: the password should have been provided to you after the installation of the MQTT Broker. If not, please contact the installer.

Please click on the "GW address" textbox, and a popup window with a keyboard will be shown:

🔮 myGEK	(KO - 192.16	i8.2.34 - Cor	inected						- (⊐ ×
										÷
仑	q	w	е	r	t	z	u	i	о	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	×
У	x	с	v	b	n	m	ö	ä		-
E	sc	12	23						С)k

Let's assume that our IPv4 address is 172.27.82.110. Please write carefully the IP address, being sure that there are no empty spaces at the end of the text.



🔮 myGEk	myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connected — — — ×										
172.	72.27.82.110										
순	q	w	е	r	t	z	u	i	0	р	
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	×	
У	x	с	v	b	n	m	ö	ä		-	
E	sc	12	23					С	Ok		

Once finished, please click on the "Ok" button to confirm it. You will be returned to the configuration menu. **NOTE**: if there is any mistake in the GW address, the IO-Station status will change to "Host address incorrect/Invalid certificate".

With this, the MQTT IO-Station is configured and ready to set the connection! It takes a few seconds until the connection process finishes... During that time, the status of the IO Station will be "No connection":



🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.2	.34 - Connected			- 🗆 X
	56 Eins	tellunge	n 🕻	÷ ←
LoRa Konfigurati	on			
GW Adresse		172.27.82	.110	
	ОК		Zurück	

When the connection is successfully done, it will turn green with the message "OK" indicating that the connection was established.

If we click now on the "Back" button, we will go to the MQTT IO Station configuration screen, and we will see that the alarm is gone, and the IO Station is not red anymore.



🔮 myGEKKO - 192	.168.2.34 -	Connected			_		×
↑ 1	5:56 21. Nov	Einstellur	ngen		ç	÷	-
1: IOStation	>	LoRa					
2: IOStation	>			Kor	nfiguration >		
2. IOCtation				D	iagnose >		
3. IUStation	>				Geräte >		
4: IOStation	>						
5: IOStation	>						
6: IOStation	>	Log aktivieren Aus	۰.				
7: IOStation	>						
8: IOStation	>						

Modifying parameters in an already configured MQTT IO-Station

If for any reason we need to change the configuration of the MQTT IO-Station, we just need to follow the same steps indicated in the previous section *"Configuring the MQTT IO-Station"*. The IO-Station will restart if it detects that something has changed.

If everything goes well, then it will connect to the Broker. If not, we just need to read the connection status message to understand what is going on.

Connection status messages

The status field in the MQTT IO Station configuration menu informs about the connection status of the myGEKKO device with the MQTT Broker. The following table summarize the set of status in which the connection can be:



Status display	Status description	Possible solutions
Ok	The IO Station is connected	-
	and ready to receive	
	messages	
Not connected	The controller is not	Enter the connection
	connected to the Broker	parameters and set the
	T	Integration type.
No response	The broker does not provide a	Check the used broker for
	response to the connection	errors.
User/password incorrect	The entered password and/or	Checking the input fields and
User/password incorrect	Username are incorrect	the broker authentication
		settings
Host address incorrect/invalid	The specified address cannot	Check address for
certificate	be reached	correctness.
		Check if the selected broker is
		active.
		Check the port used (by
		default: 1883)
		check the certificate was
Invalid protocol version	The version of the	Contact the support
	communication protocol is	department if this occurs
	incorrect	
Identifier rejected	The unique identifier of the	Contact the support
,	connection was rejected	department if this occurs.
Server not available	The server is reachable, but it	Contact the support
	is not operating normally	department if this occurs.
User/password format	The username or password	Check the username and
incorrect	contains invalid characters.	password that was written.
		Change the username and
		password in the server.
		Contact the support
		department if this still occurs
Incorrect topic format		Contact the support
		department if this occurs.
Incorrect host format		Check the address for
		correctness.
		Contact the support
		department if this still occurs
Incorrect integration		Contact the support
	1	
	23	

	department if this occurs.

Management of the MQTT devices

myGEKKO IO Stations are bridges between the myGEKKO system elements and external sensors, thus allowing the connection between the real and digital world. In this section, the management of the real-world devices within the MQTT IO Station is explained.

Adding new devices

🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34	- Connected					-		×
A	15:56 Di, 21. No) 	Einst	ellung	en		¢	•	, ,
1: IOStatic	on >	LoRa							
2: IOStatio	on >					Konfigi	uration >		
						Diagi	nose >		
3: IOStatic	on >					Ger	äte >		
4: IOStatic	on >								
5: IOStatic	on >								
6: IOStatio	on >	Log aktiviere	n	Aus					
7: IOStatic	on >								
8: IOStatic	on >								

Starting in the IO Station main screen, please click on the "Devices" button.

Then, the device manager will be shown. The device manager screen is divided into rows, where each row will belong to a device. In addition, each row has multiple fields, organized by columns. The meaning of the columns is:



- **Name**: the name that the user assigns to the device. For example: "Temperature sensor kitchen". The maximum number of characters is XXXX.
- ID: the unique ID for each device. In this case, for MQTT devices will be the DevEUI of the device. WARNING: please carefully write the correct DevEUI in this field and take care if you copy-paste from a file. It may contain hidden characters thus making the DevEUI unusable. For example: 70B3D558100015E1. NOTE: the users can add the DevEUI using upper or lower case, and with our without '-'. The myGEKKO controller filters it and uses the right format.
- Profile: the profile associated with the device. A profile is a set of rules to understand the content of the device's data package. Therefore, for each supported device in the myGEKKO controller, a profile can be found. For example, "enerthing enerSENSE CO2".
 WARNING: the selection of a wrong profile for a sensor will lead to a malfunction of data extraction and, therefore, the acquisition of wrong data. This can be dangerous for the myGEKKO controller and the sensors/actuators connected to it.
- **BAT**: the actual battery level (if available) of the device, in "%". If the sensor is not using batteries, "N/A" will be shown.
- **Info**: the current state of the device connection. It shows also the last time (time and date) that a message was received from the device. If the connection is good, it will show "Connected" with a green background. If something is not going good, the proper error message will be shown with a red background.

In addition, 4 buttons located at the bottom of the screen can be found. These buttons are:

- Save: save the current state of the device list.
- **Reload**: load the latest state of the device list that was saved.
- **GW configuration**: configure the MQTT Broker by using the current device list.
- Back: go back to the IO Station main screen.

NOTE: it is recommended that, after every device that is either added or removed, the user clicks on the "Save" button to avoid loose information. If something happens in that moment, and the user did not save the latest changes, they will be lost.

WARNING: if the "Reload" button is pressed before the "Save" button, then the latest changes will not be saved, and the data which will be uploaded will be the last version of the devices list that was saved. The same behavior will happen if we click on the "Back" button.

NOTE: the Broker configuration button takes the latest version of the device list that was saved by the user. That means that the user should 1) first click on the "Save" button to save the latest version, and 2) second click on the "GW configuration" button to send the devices' information to the MQTT Broker. The same concept applies when the user delete a device.

To add a new device, please click on the "+" icon located on the left side of the screen, in any of the free entries. For example, in the first row.





A popup screen will appear, including the needed fields to be filled with the new device information. This screen has 5 text fields which must be filled up to add a new device. These fields are:

- Name: the name associated with the device.
- **Profile**: the profile, within the list of supported profiles, associated to the device.



- **DevEUI**: the DevEUI provided by the manufacturer. The supported format is, for example, 1122334455667788, instead of 11-22-33-44-55-66-77-88. And letters must be uppercase.
- **AppEUI**: the AppEUI provided by the manufacturer. The supported format is, for example, 1122334455667788, instead of 11-22-33-44-55-66-77-88. And letters must be uppercase.
- **AppKey**: the AppKey provided by the manufacturer. The supported format is, for example, 112233445566778899AABBCCDDEEFF, instead of 11-22-33-44-55-66-77-88-99-AA-BB-CC-DD-EE-FF. And letters must be uppercase.

The first step is to click in the text field of "Name". Then, a popup screen will be shown.



 15:46 Fr. 17. Nov Einstellungen I OStation I OStat
1: IOStation > 2: IOStation > 3: IOStation > 4: IOStation > 5: IOStation > Geräte LoRa
2: IOStation > 3: IOStation > 4: IOStation > 5: IOStation > Geräte LoRa
3: IOStation > Gerate > Gerate > Gerate LoRa
4: IOStation > Geräte LoRa
Geräte LoRa
Geräte LoRa
Name
DevEUI Beispiel: 1122334455667788
AppEUL
Beispiel: 1122334455667788
AppKey Beispiel: AABBCCDDEEFF00112233445566778899
Batterie
nfo Not connected
ок

There, a self-described name is recommended to be added. In our case, and since we are adding a sensor from Enerthing, called enerSENSE CO2, we will call it "enerSENSE CO2". Click on the "OK" button to confirm the name.

(IMAGE)



As soon as a name is introduced, the "Profile" field is automatically initialized with the first available profile. In this case, the "Micropelt MLR003 Actuator". This avoid to have initialized devices without a associated profiles.

🔮 myGEKKO - 192.1	i8.2.34 - Connected		- (⊐ ×
A F				
1: IOStation				
2: IOStation				
3: IOStation				
4: IOStation				
	Geräte L	oRa		
Name	enerSENSE CO2			
Profil	Micropelt MLR003 Actuator			
DevEUI	0			
	Beispiel: 1122334455667788			
AppEUI	0			
	Beispiel: 1122334455667788			
АррКеу	0			
	Beispiel: AABBCCDDEEFF00112233445566	778899		
Batterie	N/A			
nfo	Not connected			
	.öschen		ок	

Since the sensor that we are including is not the Micropelt MLR003 actuator, we need to change and select the correct profile. To do that, please click on the "Profile" text field. In this case, a popup screen is shown containing a list of the available profiles to be selected in the myGEKKO



controller. This is, a list of supported devices into the controller. **NOTE**: if you acquired a device which is not shown in that list, please contact to our support team.

🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34	- Connected			_	×
	PRO	FILE			
	Micropelt MLF	R003 A	ctuator		
	MClimate C	CO2 se	nsor		
	MClimate Vi	cki hea	ter v1		
	MClimate Vi	cki hea	ter v2		
	Dragino LDS02 D	oor/Wi	ndow sens	\$	
	Milesight WS202	2 PIR 8	Light se		
	Milesight WS301	1 Magn	etic con <u>ta</u>		
	Milesight WS302	2 Soun	d level se		
	Milesight AM30	7 Air Q	uality Se		
	Milesight WS523	3 Porta	ble Socke		
	Milesight VS121	Al wo	rkplace s		
	Esc		Ok		

Scroll down until you find the correct profile. In our case, the correct profile would be "Enerthing enerSENSE CO2". Click on it, and then click on the "OK" button. **NOTE**: the correct profile to be selected will be indicated in the delivery note when buying a device directly to myGEKKO. If a device is not bought directly to myGEKKO, please check the documentation of the MQTT supported devices that you can find here.



🔮 myG	EKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connected	-		×
				-
	Milesight WS203 Motion&TH			
	Milesight WT101 Smart Thermost			
	Netvox R718N315 3P			
	Elsys EMS lite			
	Elsys ERS2 Sound			
	tabs TBDW100 Door/Window Senso			
	IM Buildings IB010-110.00			
	Enerthing enerSENSE Basic		Ц	
	Enerthing enerSENSE CO2			
	Esc Ok			

Then, the popup screen will be closed, and the device menu is shown again. **WARNING**: please make sure that the "Profile" field now shows the profile that you just selected.

After giving a name and selecting the device's profile, it is time to add the device credentials, provided also when buying the device. We will start by introducing the DevEUI of the device. Click on the DevEUI text field.



🔮 myGEKKO - 192."	168.2.34 - Coni	nected			_	×
E. LOOI-Har						
			Gei	räte LoRa		
Name	enerSEN	SE CO2				
Profil	Enerthing	enerSENSE	CO2			
DevEU	0					
	Beispiel: 1	112233445560	37788			
AppEU	0					
L	Beispiel: 1	112233445568	67788			
АррКеу	/ 0 Reicpiel: /		EEE00110000/	445588770000		
	Deispiei. A	AADDUUDDE	EFF001122334	440000770099		
Batteria	N/A					
nfo	Not conne	ected				
	Löschen				OK	

A popup screen will appear with a text field including the character "0".



🔮 myGEKK(D - 192.168.2.3	34 - Connecte	d						-	o x
										2
					ID					
U U										
合	q	W	е	r	t	z	u	i	о	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k		ü	$\langle \times$
у	Х	С	V	b	n	m	Ö	ä		-
E	SC	12	23						C	k

Please delete the character"0".



🔮 myGEKK	D - 192.168.2.	34 - Connecte	d						-	o x
					ID					
ľ										
	a	w	е	r	t	z	u	i	о	a
	-1									
	•	A	f	a	h	:	Ŀ		n	
a	5	u		g		J	ĸ		u	
У	Х	С	V	b	n	m	Ö	ä		-
E	SC	12	23						C)k

And then write the DevEUI associated to the device. As indicated before, it is important to write the DevEUI respecting the correct format. Otherwise, the system will not work properly. For example:

- 11AA22BB33CC44DD → correct.
- 11aa22BB33cc4dd \rightarrow incorrect.
- 11-AA-22-BB-33-CC-44-DD \rightarrow incorrect.



WARNING: to also avoid the inclusion of hidden characters, we recommend to manually write the DevEUI. The copy&paste process could add these hidden characters which are completely invisible for the user, but not for the software.

👱 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connected — 🗆 X										
										ļ
					ID					
8C1	F648	3D00	0029	92B						
企	q	W	е	r	t	Z	u	i	0	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k		ü	$\langle \times$
v	x	C	V	h	n_	m_	ö	ä		
y	~		V				0	a		
_		40								
E	SC	12	23						C	VK

After texting the DevEUI, please click on the "OK" button.


Once again, please check in the device screen that the just added DevEUI information is correct after clicking on the "OK" button.

🔮 myGEKKO - 192.1	8.2.34 - Connected		-	o x
				÷
	G	eräte LoRa		
Name	enerSENSE CO2			
Profil	Enerthing enerSENSE CO2			
DevEUI	8C1F648D0000292B			
	Beispiel: 1122334455667788			_
AppEUI	0			
	Beispiel: 1122334455667788			_
АррКеу		- / /		
	Beispiel: AABBCCDDEEFFUUTT223	3445566778899		
Batterie	N/A			
Info	Not connected			
L	öschen		OK	

Repeat the same process to add the AppEUI information. Click on the AppEUI text field to open the popup screen. The character "0" is shown.

🔮 myGEKK(D - 192.168.2.3	34 - Connecte	ł						-	0 ×
										- (
					LoRa					
仑	q	W	е	r	t	z	u	i	0	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	×
у	x	с	v	b	n	m	Ö	ä		_
E	SC	12	23						С)k

Please remove it and write, using the correct format, the AppEUI information associated with the device and provided when buying it. For example:

• AppEUI: 00000000000000

🔮 myGEKK(D - 192.168.2.	34 - Connecte	ł						-	o x
					LoRa					
0000	0000	0000	0000	00						
合	q	W	е	r	t	Z	u	i	0	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k		ü	$\langle \times \rangle$
V	v	<u> </u>	V	h	n	m	ö	ä		
У	^	C	V	U	••		0	a		-
_										
E	SC	12	23						0	k

Click on the "Ok" button to confirm the AppEUI. Finally, to add the AppKey, please click on the text field of the AppKey.



🔮 myGEKKO - 192.16	58.2.34 - Conne	cted			_	×
E-1004-4						٦
			Ge	eräte LoRa		
Name	enerSENSE	E CO2				
Profil	Enerthing e	enerSENSE (002			
DevEUI	8C1F648D	0000292B				
	Beispiel: 11	2233445566	7788			
AppEUI	000000000	0000000				
	Beispiel: 11	2233445566	17788			
АррКеу						
	Beispiel: A4	ABRCCDDE1	EFFUU112233	3445566778899		
Batterie	N/A					
nfo	Not connec	ted				
L	.öschen				ОК	

A popup screen will appear containing a text field with a 0. Please remove the 0 and write the correct AppKey of the device that was provided when buying it. For example:

• AppKey: D6BD5285FCB01A1A9BF3C177D88B25C1

🔮 myGEKK	D - 192.168.2.3	34 - Connecte	ł						_	o x
										<
					LoRa					
DAB	D52	85E(ORE	301	77ס	2882	501	
	052	001 0			1901	501	1100		501	
$\hat{\Delta}$	a	W	е	r	t	7	u	i	0	n
	Ч		Ŭ				5	•		٣
а	S	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	$\langle \times$
V	x	c_	v	b	n_	m_	ö	ä		-
E	SC	12	23						0	k

Click on the "Ok" button to confirm the AppKey. Now, after writing all the sensor's information, giving it a name, a associating a profile, the configuration is finished! Please click on the "OK" button to close the device info screen.

WARNING: as it was said before, device's information is now introduced but not saved. It the controller is switched off, the just introduced information will be lost.



🔮 myGEKKO - 192.	168.2.34 - Connected			_	п×
					÷
		Geräte LoR	ła		
Name	enerSENSE CC	2			
Profil	Enerthing enerS	ENSE CO2			
DevEU	8C1F648D0000	292B			
	Beispiel: 112233	4455667788			
AppEU	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	000			
	Beispiel: 112233	4455667788			
АррКеу	D6BD5285FCB	01A1A9BF3C177D88B25C1			
	Beispiel: AABBC	CDDEEFF00112233445566778	899		
Batterie	e N/A				
nfo	Not connected				
	Löschen			ОК	

After clicking on the "OK" button, we go back to the IO Station device manager. Now, the just added device is shown. The "INFO" column indicates "Not connected" since we have not saved the new device. To do that, please click on the "Save" button, located at the bottom left corner of the screen.



3 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connected				- 🗆 X
	Geräte l	_oRa		
NAME	ID PROFI	LE BAT	INFO	
1 enerSENSE 8C1F6	48D0000292B Enerthing en	erSEN N/A	Not connected	>
+	i I			
+				
+				
+				
+				
+				
+				
				\mathbf{v}
Speichern	Neu laden	GW konfigurie	eren Zuri	ück

Another popup screen will appear asking if we are sure that we want to save the new device list. If we are not sure and we want to check again the new device, you can click on "No", and the popup screen will be close, redirecting to the device manager automatically. If you are sure, please click on "Yes".



Then, the "Save" button will remain with a green background for a few seconds, meaning that the saving process is being executed. When finished, the device manager will look like this:

達 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connect	ted				-	- 0	×
		Geräte L	oRa				- 1
NAME	ID	PROFILI	E BAT	INFC)		- 1
1 enerSENSE 8C1	F648D0000292B E	nerthing ene	rSEN N/A	Not conr	^{nected} >		- 1
+							
+							
+							
+							- 1
+							- 1
							- 1
							- 1
							- 1
						\sim	
Speichern	Neu lac	den	GW konfigu	rieren	Zurüc	ck	

The "INFO" column will be still in the "Not connected" state since no packages have been received yet. Do not worry, as soon as the first package arrives, the "INFO" column will be updated.

To ensure that the device was successfully saved and stored in the device list with the correct configuration, we can click on the "Reload" button. This will force the system to clean the device manager screen, open the internal device list and show what is written there.



After clicking on the "Reload" button, please confirm that by clicking on the "Yes" button in the new popup screen.

🔮 myGEKKO - 1	92.168.2.34 -	Connected						_		X
				Geräte L	.oRa					
				Neu la	den					
	Möcht	en Sie I	Ihre Änder	rungen r	ückgä	ngig ma	chen un	d die		
			ursprüngl	iche Lis	te neu	laden?				
		l	Vein			Ja				
									\checkmark	
						onfigurie				

After a few seconds, where the controller is processing the device list, all the devices stored in the internal device list are shown.

If the device that we just added is shown again, that means that the adding process was done good. However, if the device is not shown now, that means that something was wrong in the process, and the you have to start from the beginning.

🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 -	Connected						-		×
♠ 15:4 F0.17 1	l 6 Nov	Eir	nstelli	unge	n	¢		<	
			Geräte L	oRa					
NAME		ID	PROFIL	.E B.	AT INF	0		_	
1 enerSENSE	8C1F648	D0000292B	Enerthing en	erSEN N	I/A Not co	nnected	>		
• •									
+									
+									
+									
+									
+									
+									
							•	\checkmark	
Speich	ern	Neu l	aden	GW kor	nfigurieren	Zu	rück		

As last step, we would need to click on the "GW configuration" button to also add this device to the Broker configuration in order to enable the direct communication between the MQTT Broker and the device. **This process can take between 5 and 10 seconds**, so we need to wait patiently without interacting with the myGEKKO controller.



WARNING: please note that the user should not click on the "GW configuration" button every time a device is added to the list. The use of this button should be done when the entire list of devices is complete. This means that, if we want to add 5 devices, first we should add the 5 devices (for sure clicking on "Save" every time we add a new device), and then click only once in the "GW configuration" button.

At this point, the addition of a new device is finished, and the device's IO signals are ready to be used within the system elements.

Using the device's IO signals within the system elements

The idea behind adding devices is to use their IO signals within the system elements as source of data or as an actuator controller. In this section we will see how to connect system's elements' signals with IO signals from devices from the IO station.

Starting from the main screen, click on the Menu button (square button on the top left corner or the screen):





Then, the system menu will me shown. For this example, a "Room control" system element will be created, where we will need the temperature, humidity, and air quality data inputs. Therefore, we click on the icon of the "Room Control".







The Room control manager is then shown. First step is to create a new page (if needed) by clicking on the left menu, on the "Add" button:



For this new page, we will give the name of "Ground floor". Click on the "Ok" button to confirm it.



🔮 myGEk	(KO - 192.16	8.2.34 - Cor	nected						— C	x c
Bitte Titel eingeben. Leer = Platzhalter										
Grou	undfl	oor								
	a	w	e	r	t	7	ш	i	0	
	Ч		Ŭ	•	•	-	ч			n
									0	р
										р
а	S	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	p ×
а	S	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	р ×
v_	s x_	d c_	f v_	g b_	h n_	j m_	k ö_	l ä_	ü	р ×
а У	s x	d c	f v	g b	h n	j m	k ö	l ä	ü	р ×
а У 	s x	d c	f v	g b	h n	j m	k ö	l ä	ü	р ×
y E	s X SC	d c 12	f v 23	g b :	h n	j m	k ö	lä	ü C	p × -

After creating the page, we can create a new system element of the room temperature control by clicking on the right button "Add".



One more time, we give a name to this new system element. For example, "Bedroom". Click on the "Ok" button to confirm it.



🔮 myGEK	(KO - 192.16	i8.2.34 - Cor	inected						— () X
	Bit	te Na	men	eingel	ben. L	eere	= Plat	zhalte	er	
							I			
仑	q	w	е	r	t	z	u	i	о	р
а	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	I	ü	×
У	x	с	v	b	n	m	ö	ä		-
Esc 123									С)k

At this point, the myGEKKO controller viewer should look like this:



🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34 - Conne	ected			—	o x
A	16:04 Di, 21. Nov.		Rau	mregelung	¢	÷
Ground	lfloor	>		Bedroom	.al	Komfort
+ Hinzufü	igen		+	Hinzufügen		

This screen is not showing too much information since we did not configure any sensor to acquire the temperature of the room. It only shows the working mode, set to "Comfort". Please click on the element to see more details.

After clicking on the element, the room control screen will be shown. This screen will show you the temperature set point and also the opening level of the heating valve, among other things.







If we want to use the data provided by the MQTT sensor which we just included in the MQTT IO Station we need to link the IO signals of the sensor with the IO variables of the system element. To do that, please click on the "Configuration" button located on the top right corner of the screen. In the small popup that will appear, please click on the "IO configuration" option to open the IO manager.

🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34 - Connect	ed		-	o ×
A	16:04 Di, 21. Nov.	Raumr	egelung	ę	÷
		Groundfloor	Bedr ı Param	neter Infiguration	
		Soll	21.0 °C		
	Regler	100%			

In the new screen, please click on the button "Sensors". Since we want to get the data from the temperature sensor.



🔮 myGEKKO	- 192.168.2.34 - Conn	– o ×						
A	16:04 Di, 21. Nov.	Raumregelung	\$° ←					
Ľ		Bedroom	IO-Konfiguration					
Gerät		Standard						
Funktion / Re	egelung	Heizen/Kühlen laut Mischkreis / PI-Regler						
Raumbedienteil		Standard						
		Sensoren >						
		Taster/Kontakte >						
Ansteuerungen >								
	Anzeigen/Ansteuerungen >							
	E-Heizung Segmente >							

Then, a new screen will be shown with a list of input signals which can be obtained from sensors, like "Temperature", "Humidity", "Air Quality", etc. We can know that those signals are input signals because they all show the letters "Al" inside a button, which means "Analog Input". In case that the signal is an output, it will show "AO", which means "Analog Output".

Next step is to click on the "AI" button associated with the "Temperature" IO signal:





A popup screen will appear, which can be split into three different columns:

- The IO Stations list: it shows the list of available IO Stations, where the user can select the IO Station where the target device was included.
- The device list: it shows the list of available devices that are connected to the IO Station selected in the previous column.
- The IO signals list: it shows the list of available IO signals that the device selected before can provide. **NOTE**: if in the IO manager it was written "AI", only input signals will be shown here. On the other hand, if in the IO manager it was written "AO", only output signals will be shown.

At the beginning, only the IO Station list is shown. The rest of the columns are dynamically shown according to what the user selects.

Therefore, in the IO Stations list, we must select the MQTT IO station which was configured before. In our case, the IO Station number 3. Click on it to move forward:





After selecting the IO Station, the device list is shown. Only one device is listed since we only included one device. Then, we must click on the device to see the input signals that it is providing us. **NOTE**: we are always talking from the point of view of the myGEKKO controller. When we say "input signal", it means a signal/data that is being received by the myGEKKO controller from an external source. However, for the device point of view, it will be an output.



Finally, the list of input signals is shown. Please click on the target input signal, which in our case is the "*I.Temperature*".



Note that the selected signal has a white background to clearly show the user what was its selection. Once we are sure that we did it good, please click on the "Ok" button to confirm the selection.



At this point, the selection button of the "Temperature" signal change from "Al" to "3.1_5", which means that the selected signal belongs to the 3rd IO Station, 1st device, 5th position. In addition, the value changed from 0.0°C to 20.8°C, which is the first value sent by the sensor. **NOTE**: when a signal is selected, it takes the null value for a short period of time, to then change to the by default value, set by the myGEKKO controller. In case of the temperature, it is 20°C. This value will remain until a real value is sent by the sensor. The reason behind this is to avoid the raise of alarms while we wait for a real value.



Please click on the "Back" button (left arrow located at the top right corner of the screen) to go back to the room control screen. Back there, now we can see the sensory information from the temperature sensor.

The valve position is now set to 0% since the measured temperature is 20.8°C and the setpoint is set to 21°C. Therefore, the controller thinks that it is not needed to open the valve.







At this point, we could repeat the same process to set get humidity or the air quality within the room control system element.

In general, the process described above is valid for any sensor that we may need to use. It will depend on the selected sensor and the system element to which the sensor's signals must be linked.

A list of the supported MQTT sensors can be found here. This document explains, device by device, the device's IO signals, their default values, ranges, etc. Summarizing, all we could need to add and use a device along with the myGEKKO controller.

For any suggestion related to the supported devices, like the addition of a new device, please let the support team know.

Modifying parameters in an already existing MQTT device

It could happen that, after adding a new device, we discover that one of the parameters was wrong, or simply we do not like the name. In that case, it would be nice to know how to change the parameters of a device from the device list.

Let's assume that we are already in the MQTT IO-Station's device list's screen. After identifying the device which has to be modified, we have to click on the ">" button located at the right side of the screen, in the same row of the device.



3 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - Connected	I		_	o x
				~
				_
	Geräte	e LoRa		
NAME		FILE BAT	INFO	_
1 enerSENSE 8C1F	648D0000292B Enerthing	enerSEN N/A	Not connected >	
+				
+				
+				
+				
+				
+				
				$\overline{}$
				▲
Speichern	Neu laden	GW konfigurie	ren Zurück	

A popup screen will be shown containing the device's information. To modify one of the parameters, we just need to click on the field that we want to modify. For example, the name:

🔮 myGEKKO - 192.168.	.2.34 - Connected			_	o x
↑ 1: Fr,	5:46 17. Nov.	Einstellung	en	¢	÷
		Geräte LoRa			
Name	enerSENSE CO2				
Profil	Enerthing enerSENSE	: CO2			
DevEUI 8	8C1F648D0000292B				
E	Beispiel: 11223344556	667788			
AppEUI (000000000000000000000000000000000000000				
E	Beispiel: 11223344556	67788			
АррКеу (D6BD5285FCB01A1A	9BF3C177D88B25C1			
E	Beispiel: AABBCCDDE	EEFF00112233445566778899			
Batterie 1	N/A				
Info N	Not connected				
Lö	öschen			ок	

ADD PICTURE OF THE POPUP WITH THE OLD NAME

PICTURE OF THE POPUP WITHOUT THE TEXT

PICTURE OF THE POPUP WITH THE NEW TEXT



PICTURE OF THE DEVICE INFO WITH THE NEW NAME

PICTURE OF THE DEVICE LIST WITH THE NEW NAME

Removing existing devices

🔮 myGEKł	KO - 192.168.2.34 -	Connected						-		×
				Geräte L	oRa					
	NAME		ID	PROFI	LE BA	AT INF	o			
	enerSENSE	8C1F648	3D0000292B	Enerthing en	erSEN N/	A Not co	nnected	>		
	+									
	+									
	+									
	+									
	+									
	+									
	+									
									Ť	
	Speich	nern	Neu l	aden	GW kont	figurieren	Zu	rück		



👱 myGEKKO - 192.16	8.2.34 - Connected		-	×
		Geräte LoRa		
Name	enerSENSE CO2			- 1
Profil	Enerthing enerSENSE	E CO2		
DevEUI	8C1F648D0000292B			- 1
	Beispiel: 11223344558	667788		- 1
AppEUI	000000000000000000000000000000000000000			
	Beispiel: 11223344556	667788		- 1
АррКеу	D6BD5285FCB01A1A	A9BF3C177D88B25C1		- 1
	Beispiel: AABBCCDD	EEFF00112233445566778899		
Batterie	N/A			
nfo	Not connected			
L	.öschen		OK	



達 myGEKKO - 192.168.2.34 - C	onnected			_	o x
15:4 Fr, 17. N	6 lov.	Einstell	ungen	¢	÷
1: IOStation					
2: IOStation 2					
4: IOStation					
		Geräte L	oRa		
NAME + + + + + + + + + +	D	PROFIL	E BAT	INFO	
Speiche	ern	Neu laden	GW konfigurier	en Zurück	



Q&As

- "I enabled and configured the MQTT IO Station, but the connection is not stablished. What is wrong?"
 - \circ $\,$ Check that the MQTT Broker is connected to the power supply.
 - Check that the power supply button is pressed.
 - Check that the MQTT Broker is physically connected to the myGEKKO controller via Ethernet.
 - Check that the IPv4 address of the Broker in the configuration screen matches the IPv4 address provided with the MQTT Broker.
 - Check that the network configuration of the Ethernet port in the myGEKKO controller has not been changed and matches the original configuration.
- "I unboxed my new device, connected the battery, and switched on. However, I did not receive any data at the myGEKKO controller".
 - Check that you installed the batteries correctly.
 - Check that you pressed the correct button. Sometimes there are more than one.
 - Check that the device is within the MQTTWAN coverage range or that the signal is powerful enough.
 - \circ $\;$ Check that the Broker is connected to the myGEKKO controller and powered on.
 - If the device's manufacturer provides an mobile app, please use it to connect to the device and check what is the internal status of the device.


Useful links and bibliography



myGEKKO | Ekon GmbH

St. Lorenznerstraße 2 I-39031 Bruneck (BZ) Tel. +039 0474 551820 info@my.gekko.com www.my-gekko.com

Stand: 21.12.2023

